EXECUTIVE

Present:

Councillor Edwards (Chair) Councillors Bialyk, Denham, Hannaford, Leadbetter, Morse, Owen, Pearson and Sutton

Also present:

Chief Executive & Growth Director, Director of Communications and Marketing, Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support, Technical Accounting Manager, Service Manager, Community Safety & Enforcement and Democratic Services Manager (Committees)

42

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest were made.

A Member declared the following interest and left the meeting:-

COUNCILLOR	MINUTE
Councillor Leadbetter	53 (other interest - Director of the Estuary League of Friends)

43

URGENT ITEM

The Chair informed the meeting that he intended to take an urgent item relating to the Estuary Community Hub. He stated that it was deemed urgent to ensure that all capital funding was secured ahead of building works, which were scheduled to take place 12 months from April 2017, and in order to secure other sources of funding that the Estuary League of Friends had acquired.

As this was a recommendation to Council there was no requirement to consult with the relevant Scrutiny Chair prior to the item being considered this evening.

44 LEISURE COMPLEX AND BUS STATION PROGRAMME BOARD MINUTES - 22 MARCH 2017

The minutes of the Leisure Complex and Bus Station Programme Board held on 22 March 2017 were submitted.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Leisure Complex and Bus Station Programme Board held on 22 March 2017 be received and, where appropriate, adopted.

45

MAJOR GRANTS PANEL MINUTES - 23 MARCH 2017

The minutes of the Major Grants Panel meeting held on 23 March 2017 were submitted.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Major Grants Panel meeting held on 23 March 2017 be received and, where appropriate, adopted.

CAR PARK TARIFFS

The Service Manager Community Safety & Enforcement presented the report on increasing both car park tariffs and the number of pay and display parking sites from June 2017.

The Portfolio Holder for Economy commented that this increase was in line with the approved budget. The parking charges within Exeter had fallen behind other cities but were still comparatively low. The impact of the increase would be monitored.

Members welcomed the return of the Station Road car park at Exwick to City Council control.

Place Scrutiny Committee considered the report at its meeting on 9 March 2017 and its comments were reported.

RESOLVED that the following be approved:-

(1) tariffs at Premium, Zone 1 and Zone 2 car parks be increased by 10% within the existing linear pricing structure as set out in the table below but retain the existing all day tariff to encourage visitor dwell time:-

Premium Car Parks (Guildhall, Mary Arches, John Lewis)				
Stay	Current Tariff	Proposed Tariff		
1 hour	£2.00	£2.20		
2 hours	£3.00	£3.30		
3 hours	£4.00	£4.40		
4 hours	£5.00	£5.50		
5 hours	£6.00	£6.60		
6 hours	£7.00	£7.70		
7 hours	£8.00	£8.80		
All day	£12.00	£12.00		
Zone 1 Car Parks (Bampfylde Street, Bartholomew Terrace, Harlequins, King William Street, Magdalen Road, Magdalen Street, Matthews Hall, Princesshay 2, Princesshay 3, Smythen Street)				
Stay	Current Tariff	Proposed Tariff		
1 hour	£1.00	£1.10		
2 hours	£2.00	£2.20		
3 hours	£3.00	£3.30		
4 hours	£4.00	£4.40		
5 hours	£5.00	£5.50		
6 hours	£6.00	£6.60		
7 hours	£7.00	£7.70		
All day	£10.00	£10.00		

46

Zona 7 L'ar Parks (Ralmont Ro					
	ad, Bystock Terrace, Ca				
Haven Road 1, Howell Road, Richmond Road, Parr Street, Topsham Quay, Triangle)					
Stay	Current Tariff	Proposed Tariff			
Stay					
1 hour	£1.00	£1.10			
2 hours	£2.00	£2.20			
3 hours	£3.00	£3.30			
4 hours	£4.00	£4.40			
5 hours	£5.00	£5.50			
All day	£6.00	£6.00			
Zone 3 Car Parks (Flowerpot, Haven Road 2 & 3, Holman Way,					
Okehampton Street, Tappers Close)					
Stay	Current Tariff	Proposed Tariff			
1 hour	£0.50	£0.50			
2 hours	£1.00	£1.00			
3 hours	£1.50	£1.50			
4 hours	£2.00	£2.00			
All day	£2.50	£2.50			
Zone 3 Car Parks with Maximum Stay (Clifton Hill, Gordons Place, Station					
Road (Exwick))					
1 hour	£0 50	<u> </u>			
1 hour 2 hours	£0.50 £1.00	£0.50 £1.00			
	£1.50	£1.50			
3 hours maximum stay	£1.00	£1.50			
Coach Parking at Haven Road	£5.00	£5.00			
3 (per day)	20.00	20.00			
Quarterly Commuter Season	£300.00	£300.00			
Ticket					
Residents Annual Season	£125.00	£125.00			
Ticket					
Bartholomew Terrace	£205.00	£205.00			
Business Permit					
Cathedral & Quay Business	£565.00	£565.00			
Bays					

- (2) the following additional car parks be included in the Parking Places Order 2014:

 - (a) Flowerpot (Appendix 1)(b) Station Road (Exwick) (Appendix 2) and
 - (c) Clifton Hill (Appendix 3)
 - by way of pay and display
- the following car parks be designated as Zone 3 Car Parks as set out in (3) paragraph 2.1 above table in the Parking Places Order 2014:
 - (a) Flowerpot,
 - (b) Station Road (Exwick) and
 - (c) Clifton Hill

(4) parking to a maximum 3 hour stay be restricted at the new Clifton Hill and Station Road (Exwick) car parks.

47 PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT IN THE DEMOCRATIC PROCESS AND WEBCASTING

The Corporate Manager Democratic & Civic Support presented the report setting out a response to the Notice of Motion which was passed by Council in February 2016 regarding encouraging greater public engagement in the democratic process and webcasting of Council meetings.

Members supported the proposals and welcomed the trial of the use of social media to broadcast some of the Councils meetings. Members felt that there were already mechanisms in place where residents could ask questions of the Council such as the opportunities to ask questions at Scrutiny Committees and Exeter Board.

Corporate Scrutiny Committee considered the report at its meeting on 23 March 2017 and its comments were reported including it support for the recommendations.

RECOMMENDED to Council that:-

- (1) the current arrangements for the holding of all public meetings of the City Council be maintained;
- (2) a simple trial for broadcasting some of the Council meetings be undertaken with a view to assessing the levels of take up and feedback for a report to a future meeting of this Committee;
- (3) the suggestion for a period of time for public questions to the Council Leader not be supported; and
- (4) the Corporate Manager, Democratic & Civic Support, work closely with the Director of Communications & Marketing to maximise publicity of the decision making process, including items on committee agenda as and when appropriate.

48

OVERVIEW OF REVENUE BUDGET 2016/17

The Technical Accounting Manager presented the report advising Members of the overall projected financial position of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and General Fund Revenue Budgets for the 2016/17 financial year after nine months and to seek approval for a supplementary budget.

The Technical Accounting Manager stated that the General Fund had a forecast underspend of £846,865 with a forecast working balance of £4,014,812 and the HRA had a forecast underspend of £958,178 with a forecast working balance of £7,884,723.

Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee considered the report at its meeting on 23 March 2017 and its comments were reported.

RECOMMENDED that Council notes and approves:-

- (1) General Fund forecast financial position for the 2016/17 financial year;
- (2) the HRA forecast financial position for 2016/17 financial year;

- (3) the additional supplementary budget listed in Appendix C;
- (4) the outstanding Sundry Debt position as at December 2016; and
- (5) the creditors' payments performance.

49

CAPITAL MONITORING STATEMENT TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

The Technical Accounting Manager presented the report on the current position in respect of the Council's revised annual capital programme and advising Members of the anticipated level of deferred expenditure into future years. The report also sought Member approval to amend the annual capital programme in order to reflect the reported variations.

The Technical Accounting Manager advised that major schemes including the Leisure Complex and Bus Station project and the St Loyes Extra Care Scheme had not been spent in this financial year and would be included in the next financial year.

Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee considered the report at its meeting on 23 March 2017 and its comments were reported.

RECOMMENDED that Council notes and approves the revision of the annual capital programme to reflect the reported variations as detailed in 8.4 and 8.5 of the circulated report.

50

UPDATES TO THE SCHEME OF DELEGATION

The Corporate Manager Democratic & Civic Support presented the report setting out proposals to amend the Scheme of Delegation to Officers to match operational arrangements, particularly following discussion at the Council meeting on 21 February 2017.

He advised that the amendments took account of changes as a result of the Senior Management Restructure and included the identification of the officer with delegated authority to deal with any penalty charge appeals.

RECOMMENDED that Council approve the changes to the Scheme of Delegation to Officers as set out in Appendix 1 to this report.

51 EXETER SCIENCE PARK COMPANY - EXETER CITY COUNCIL'S NOMINATED DIRECTOR

The Chief Executive & Growth Director presented the report to agree the person from Exeter City Council who will fulfil the role of Director on the Board of the Exeter Science Park Company.

RESOLVED that the following appointments be approved:-

(1) David Hodgson, as the named Director on the Board of the Exeter Science Park Company; and

(2) Jon-Paul Hedge, as the named alternative Director to the Board of Exeter Science Park Company.

52

INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY GREEN PAPER RESPONSE

The Chief Executive & Growth Director advised Members on the Council's response to the Industrial Strategy Green Paper as circulated.

The Industrial Strategy was centred around ten pillars:-

- Investing in science, research and innovation
- Upgrading infrastructure
- Improving procurement
- Delivering affordable energy and clean growth
- Driving growth across the whole country
- Developing skills
- Supporting businesses to start and grow
- Encouraging trade & inward investment
- Cultivating world-leading sectors
- Creating the right local institutions

The Council's response focused on the role of 'place', Exeter was a quality place that could retain and attract skilled and talented people which would contribute to a successful economy. Whilst Exeter had good economic growth, its performance often went unrecognised because the data was captured at a county level. The city had the alignment of many of the key ingredients to enable the city to be a successful place, with world class assets like the Met Office and the University of Exeter. There was no one size fits all and the city was working towards a number of collaborations such as the G4 grouping of Exeter, Bristol, Bath and Cardiff Universities; the growth corridor with Plymouth-Exeter-Torbay; the Greater Exeter Growth and Development Board to from a sub-regional statutory joint committee that would be capable of overseeing a local industrial strategy; and the Heart of the South West Councils proposals to set up a joint statutory committee for productivity. Investment needed to be targeted with radical approach to new methods of financing and equity investment that would help areas like Exeter to grow and invest the alignment of 'place'.

The Portfolio Holder for City Development welcomed the paper and supported the message being put forward by the Council to encourage investment in the City.

There was discussion regarding funding from the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), when it was recognised that whilst funding streams were complicated, it was important that the City continued to put robust funding bids forward for consideration by the LEP.

In response to Members, the Chief Executive & Growth Director commented that the city must work to align all the key stakeholders in Exeter and its wider catchment area to drive forward the 'place' and transformational agenda of the region.

RESOLVED that Members support the response as circulated.

THE ESTUARY COMMUNITY HUB

Councillor Leadbetter advised that the Estuary League of Friends provided a service that included the whole of Exeter. He declared an interest as a Director of the Estuary League of Friends and left the meeting during consideration of this item.

The Technical Accounting Manager presented the report which sought approval to provide a loan facility of £500,000 to the Estuary League of Friends towards the development of a multi-purpose community hub.

In response to a Member, the Technical Accounting Manager clarified that the terms of the loan would be delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Section 151 Officer and the Leader.

RECOMMENDED that Council approve the provision of a £500,000 loan facility to the Estuary League of Friends with delegated powers to the Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader and the Section 151 Officer to agree the terms of the loan.

(The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 6.10 pm)

Chair

The decisions indicated will normally come into force 5 working days after publication of the Statement of Decisions unless called in by a Scrutiny Committee. Where the matter in question is urgent, the decision will come into force immediately. Decisions regarding the policy framework or corporate objectives or otherwise outside the remit of the Executive will be considered by Council on 25 April 2017. This page is intentionally left blank

Industrial Strategy Green Paper and Consultation Response from Exeter City Council

1. Target places like Exeter for maximum economic impact

Quality places are more important to the economy than ever before. Quality places retain and attract skilled and talented people, business and investment. Cities like Exeter are ideally placed to deliver a successful industrial strategy with additional support for the following ingredients:

- creating the physical requirements having the architecture and accommodation that businesses and workers require
- building on what's there recognising the city's existing strengths and weaknesses and playing to these
- 'smart specialisation' focussing on the range of economic specialisms for which there are credible opportunities, particularly in sectors related to big data, climate change mitigation, health, water science and agri-tech
- attracting and retaining high skill organisations organisations that rely on productivity through high-quality jobs and highly-skilled people
- an acclaimed education sector linking closely with the city and businesses
- distinctive 'knowledge city' offer for businesses and people who are considering investing, working and living in the city, supported by a diverse cultural offer and high-quality city centre
- maintaining and improving strong connectivity within and outside the city economic area with major economic hubs
- strong leadership around an economic vision supported by proactive networks and public and private sector institutions working together
- a business friendly and pro-growth local administration

2. Build on Exeter's track record to secure faster growth

'Cities Outlook 2017', released by the Centre for Cities on 30th January 2017, shows that of 63 UK Cities, Exeter:

- recorded the fastest rate of population growth and the fourth highest rate of housebuilding between 2015 and 2016 and has been growing strongly since 2011
- is part of the 'leading pack' of cities that have economies that have grown by at least one-fifth since 2011, a pack consisting of Aldershot (32%), Oxford (25%), Cambridge (23%), Exeter (20%) and London (20%).
- has progressed up the productivity rankings, moving from 35th in 2009 to 30th in 2015
- has the lowest share of residents lacking formal qualifications of any UK city and is just outside the top 10 for the share of residents with high qualifications (NVQ Level 4 and above).

- has succeeded in providing work for its growing population, with a claimant count that is among the lowest 5 cities in the country and an employment rate is within the top 20.
- Is delivering workplace wages that are higher than average (20th out of 62 cities) and rising.

Exeter's economic performance often goes unrecognised when the region is presented in data because data is captured at a county level, as a result the economic significance of the city is lost, or diluted. A successful place requires an alignment of many ingredients, for example: vibrant and health city centres attract future wealth generators, cultural and leisure infrastructure assist employers to recruit and support growth, world class employers and universities attract talent, and transportation hubs allow for commuting networks to connect communities to employment opportunities. The agglomeration effect of city regions has been widely documented. Housing, education, and great things to see and do all have their role to play in making a successful place. It is right that the role of place in making a successful industrial strategy is recognised and it should be made explicit.

3. Invest in Exeter's established priorities and strengths for science, research and innovation and link with the skills needs of associated industries

We believe it is right that the industrial strategy should recognise what is special and important that we can build upon to achieve a successful economy. This is the logic of the science audits. We wholeheartedly support a strategy that seeks to develop what is world class or that is cable of being world class. The Met Office and the University of Exeter offer world class assets, building on their potential should be a priority. Likewise, the industrial strategy must recognise the benefits of a regional airport and we should be required to sweat the assets, to maximise the opportunities that flow from having an airport. Investment can be distributed without strategic alignment. The benefit of the science audit has been to help with prioritising investment.

With investment Exeter can build on its undoubted potential and aim to be the world's leading location for applied environmental science and foremost in the specialisms of high performance computing and data analytics as recognised by the recent South West and South Wales Science and Innovation Audit.

Exeter has the core assets required to become a national centre for applied environmental science and data analytics. We host the Met Office, a Russell Group University, a new Science Park, a concentration of outstanding schools and colleges specialising in maths and ICT and 400 researchers focused on climate and environment-related science with more scientific contributors to the global IPCC 5 report than any other City in the world by a large margin.

The location of the Met Office £97m supercomputer on the Exeter Science Park, and the new Tier 2 HPC Service for UK based scientists being developed by the GW4 Alliance of South West and South Wales universities

will enhance our global competitive position as a recognised hub for HPC capability and expertise to help provide pioneering solutions to some of our greatest global challenges.

Exeter City Futures has been established as a Community Interest Company by Oxygen House in collaboration with the City Council to take advantage of the scale, challenges and characteristics of the city to find pervasive and sustainable solutions to issues such as transport and energy relevant to the area. It is intended that this will generate opportunities for investment, employment and improvements in productivity. The scale of this programme is significant, truly transformational. The goal is to make Exeter an analytical city to position Exeter at the heart of a transformational economic agenda to make Exeter attractive to capital and stimulate innovation and exports. A smart cities programme does not do this programme justice.

Innovation Exeter - A partnership from across the Greater Exeter region committed to establishing the Exeter city-region as one of the UK's leading knowledge economies foremost in the areas of high performance computing, data analytics and applied environmental science. The aim is to attract significant investment, create sustainable high quality employment and raising income levels and identify the challenges that need to be addressed to raise innovation levels including retaining and attracting ambitious young people. As well as the local authorities the partners include the University of Exeter, Exeter College, Met Office and Royal Devon and Exeter Foundation NHS Trust. Key initiatives include:

- The Institute for Environmental Risk combining modelling and analysis for global environmental systems, tipping points, city and regional scale analytics, data science and modelling for environmental resilience, risk and insurance. This would be based at the Global Environmental Futures campus at the Exeter Science Park and would co-locate a world class series of research centres and Institutes with practical services and partnerships with global and regional businesses and agencies. The aim in partnership between the Met Office, the University and major data analytics companies is: to enable the greater Exeter region to become the world's leading location for applied environmental research science, with a 21st century fast growing economy which creates wealth for citizens and businesses whilst ensuring a sustainable environmental futureThe **Exeter Centre for Data Science** is being developed as a central hub for development and application of data analytics within the University., It will have focus on three thematic areas: environment, health and business innovation and will provide expertise in research and skills development.
- Securing an **open source HPC computer** offering businesses and academics the opportunity to accelerate and undertake far more complex research and modelling is seen as a real opportunity for the city. In conjunction with this there is a significant opportunity for Exeter to become a leading provider of HPC skills through the establishment of an **Institute of High Performance Computing**.

- The Met Office establish a Met Lab, focused opening up the markets their data serves and delivering maximum economic value from this public asset. The Met Lab will: facilitate access to (open source) environmental data, particularly via open source software / share tools; and bring experts together to better understand and exploit the commercial application of meteorological data.
- An **Environmental Hub** to promote collaboration and innovation based on the world class expertise, knowledge and data held by the University and Met Office.
- The development and implementation of a **series of skills escalators** to meet the current and future needs of business. The first of these for data analytics includes Exeter College provision, a new Degree Apprenticeship at University of Exeter, a new Met Office Academy and post graduate provision at the University's new Centre for Data Science.
- An Institute of Technology serving the wider area but based in Exeter which would make a real difference to attainment and the supply of relevant key skills to support the current and future employment needs.
- Scaling up of business start-up and growth support for knowledge based businesses in particular is a priority including establishing a specialist investment fund. Although growth in new business formation and survival in the city has been one of the fastest in the region, there is a need to enhance the eco system for science and technology businesses to better exploit the knowledge base and to accelerate the creation of additional high value adding organisations and quality well paid employment.
- Fintech/Financial Services Incubator/Accelerator Establishment of a regional hub, part of a national network offering a complementary eco system to London to build upon our growing reputation for digital and technological innovation to generate new businesses and employment in this sector with support from national organisations.
- Science Park Developing additional incubation and "Grow on Space" to accommodate new and existing knowledge and researched based businesses on the Science Park, linking them into the knowledge base and community of support enabling more rapid growth.

4. Support Exeter's ambitious plans for affordable energy and clean growth

Exeter City Council is working with the private sector to help make Exeter become an analytical city. We recognise we stand on the brink of a technological transformation that will revolutionise and redefine the way we live, work, and govern. The scale and scope of this global transformation will be unlike anything that has gone before it. This new phase of growth offers huge potential for those regions that can position themselves to benefit. Exeter City Futures, a CIC formed in 2016, represents a transformational agenda with a number of aims. Explicitly we aim to make Exeter energy independent and zero congestion by 2025. But our goal is even more aspirational, to position Exeter as a driving force of national analytical innovation, growth and exports. Exeter City Futures will make its own submission to the Green Paper, but we are fully supportive of the transformational goals, and believe it is the scale of ambition that is required from the south west. We are convinced nothing less than this ambition is going to address the growing gap that is emerging in the level of productivity across the region.

5. Create the right institutions to bring together sectors and places

A successful industrial strategy does require the right institutions to bring together sectors and places. This is one of the conclusions of the recent Inclusive Growth commission.

The RSA Inclusive Growth Commission recognises that "Inclusive growth will require businesses and civic organisations to work together to create stronger institutional foundations in our towns and cities. The creation of quality jobs are at the heart of this. Local businesses need to be directly engaged by local anchor institutions (universities, hospitals, colleges and other major employers) to drive up productivity and stimulate demand... an approach based on deep understanding of local assets; connecting people to quality jobs; resourcing place regeneration as well as business investment." One of its recommendations is "City regions work together to form sectoral coalitions linking industry sectors and places in order to modernise industrial strategy."

Although there can be a tendency to focus on local government structures and boundaries, the problem of structures is less about local government structures and more about the type of institutional structure that is required to recognise the demands of business and a successful economy, such that we are capable of building on success and prioritising investment to maximise growth. This can require a laying of investment and strategic alignment between organisations.

We would argue that the Heart of the South West LEP, which spans a number of disconnected, functional economic areas has struggled to prioritise investment in Exeter as a place, and investment in its industrial assets, which increase productivity.

As the Localis Report, 'The making of an Industrial strategy' states:

"Our research indicates successful places have a set of industrial assets which are attractive to people and investment. They think globally in terms of economic competition and have clear strategies for future growth. Moreover they have a clear economic purpose. In the language of economists this is referred to as functional specialisation and is a theme in successful and emerging cities internationally. Some places may have multiple purposes due to their size and diversity of economic base, but all have established an economic rationale for their existence. This sense of economic purpose helps to inform a place's offer to the right talent and investment."

The challenge is to both harness the growth potential of Exeter and linked conurbations, while ensuring that the success and ambition of our area confers benefits across Heart of the South West as whole.

There is no one-size-fits-all approach and collaborations such as the G4 grouping of Exeter, Bristol, Bath and Cardiff Universities are as important to delivering a place-based industrial strategy as the prospective Plymouth-Exeter-Torbay growth corridor. In the latter initiative, the three councils have been exploring how these three major urban areas in the South West Peninsula can work together to drive growth and increase productivity in the way that other successful city regions do.

The ambition and plans for targeted growth set out in this response require a focus and concentrated effort from a combination of public, private and educational players who own the industrial strategy linked to a place and who are not hindered in a quagmire of administrative boundaries.

Partners in the sub-region are moving to establish a formal statutory joint committee – the Greater Exeter Growth and Development Board a significant step from the current informal arrangements to a robust structure that is capable of overseeing a local industrial strategy. The Purpose of the Board is to oversee and drive the following:-

- collaboration between the member local authorities on economic development, strategic planning and promoting growth;
- the strategy for promoting and enabling the development of a competitive business environment relevant to the ambitions of the functional economic area;
- cross-boundary programmes of work including agreeing specific priorities, plans, and projects;
- an integrated approach to planning the next generation of necessary developments to address housing pressures and the transportation and communication (including ultra-fast broadband) requirements of a successful growing economy (The Greater Exeter Strategic Plan).

The Heart of the South West Councils proposals to set up a joint statutory committee for productivity recognises that there is a willingness to play a part across a wider region and that collaborations at different scales are appropriate depending on the sectors and agenda.

Arguably a truly transformational agenda that aims to make successful places like Exeter a world leading location for applied environmental sciences requires sweeping changes to existing institutional structures to radically enhance the interaction between problems, research, commercialisation, business support and growth. We would contend that unless the institutions are able to prioritise and focus on the assets and the place then we will underperform. Investment needs to be targeted, radical approaches to new methods for financing and equity investment that will jumpstart growth and investment require alignment on "place" and sectors. Whilst the definition of place will change, i.e. the city region may geographically extend to a wider catchment area, the institutional arrangements must recognise the need for an alignment.

Karime Hassan Chief Executive & Growth Director Exeter City Council

10th April 2017

This page is intentionally left blank